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Draft RFP NAS5-60747

ENGINEERING SUPPORT FOR THE BALLOON PROGRAM AND THE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE NATIONAL SCIENTIFIC BALLOON FACILITY (NSBF)

Questions following the Government Responses to Draft RFP Questions.

1.The following questions relate to providing specific information to amplify general statements in the draft Statement of Work.  

a) The following information is required in order to cost launch crew travel and balloon shipping costs.  Please provide more specifics concerning the launch locations in the Flight Operations Mission Model.  What are the nearest commercial airports to the locations of the launch sites and what are the travel distances from these airports to the launch sites for missions in Fairbanks, Lynn Lake, Sweden, and Australia.  Where is the Antarctica launch site, in relation to McMurdo or the South Pole?

This information can be found in publicly available documentation (RFP technical library, NASA/WFF balloon library, AIAA publications, COSPAR papers, Internet).  

b) We understand that NASA launched seven balloons in the September 18 timeframe at Ft. Sumner.  Will NASA state how many balloon launches and of what type are contemplated in each mission of the Flight Operations Mission Model for the 10-year period that we must cost?

Yes, the size of each balloon in the Mission Model will be provided in the final RFP.  The numbers of balloon launches is equal to the number of missions in the Mission Model.

c) What numbers of helium gas trailers are required to inflate (a) a conventional balloon, (b) a Long Duration Balloon, and (c), an Ultra-Long Duration Balloon?

This information can be derived using publicly available documentation (RFP technical library, NASA/WFF balloon library, AIAA publications, COSPAR papers, Internet).

d) Are helium trailers obtained at the various launch sites or shipped from the United States?  What are the monthly demurrage costs for helium trailers from CONUS and Australian helium suppliers?

The offeror will propose “how” to obtain and supply helium.  The monthly demurrage cost for helium trailers is available from the suppliers.  Historical data will be added to the RFP Technical Library.

e) What quantities of lithium batteries are required for (a) a conventional balloon, (b) a Long Duration Balloon, and (c), an Ultra-Long Duration Balloon?  For each launch site, please specify if these are shipped to the launch site or procured locally.

Historical data on the cost of lithium batteries used for NSBF support systems and science experiments will be added to the RFP Technical Library.  The offeror will propose “how” to obtain and supply batteries.

f) What are the weights and crate dimensions of loaded crates for shipping balloons, parachutes, and ancillary equipment?  If there are different weights of shipping containers, box dimensions, or number of boxes for each type of balloon or mission, please specify the shipping weights and dimensions for each mission contemplated in the Flight Operations Mission Model. 

The weight and cube of loaded crates for balloons and parachutes are available from the suppliers of balloons and parachutes.  The total weights and cubes of what is shipped for each mission or campaign is a function of “how” the offeror intends to support those missions.  The offeror will propose “how” to meet the requirements, which will allow them to determine how much equipment needs to be shipped.  Historical data will be added to the RFP Technical Library.

g) For each location in the Flight Operations Mission Model and balloon type contemplated at that location, please specify which support vehicles/equipment are GFE and which must be leased by the launch contractor.  Please specify the vehicle leasing requirements for the launch vehicle, spool vehicle, helium truck, and any other launch support utility vehicles at each location for each mission.

GFE is identified in the Property List (which is an attachment to the Draft RFP).  The amount of support vehicles and equipment needed is a function of “how” the offeror intends to support balloon missions.  The offeror will propose “how” to meet the requirements, which will allow them to determine what vehicles and equipment are needed.  Historical data will be added to the RFP Technical Library.
h) For each mission specified in the Flight Operations Mission Model:

(i) What are the anticipated weights of the science payloads?

Historical weights of science payloads are available in the RFP Technical Library and other publicly available sources.  

(ii) What are the types of cryogens and the anticipated amounts required for each science payload?

Historical science payload cryogen requirements are available in the RFP Technical Library.  Historical data on the cost of cryogens will be added to the RFP Technical Library.

(iii) What are the requirements for lithium batteries for each science payload?

Historical science payload lithium battery requirements are in the RFP Technical Library. Historical data on the cost of lithium batteries will be added to the RFP Technical Library.

(iv) What other support materials are required for each science payload?

Historical data on other support materials required by science payloads is in the RFP Technical Library.  Historical data on the cost of other support materials will be added to the RFP Technical Library.

2. We require an adequate description of the IT infrastructure of the NSBF and the Fort Sumner facility, in order to comply with the RFP requirement to produce an IT Security Plan.  We must have a certain amount of detail of the existing infrastructure, including hardware, software, procedures, and configuration (it is not sufficient to note that the GFE list includes all IT equipment, because the list tells nothing about configuration or software).

The IT Security Plan is required after contract award, and is not required as part of the offeror’s proposal.   As stated in B.1 of the DRFP, the IT Security Plan shall be in accordance with NASA FAR Supplement (NFS) 1852.204.72, which states what IT Security requirements must be met.  The current contract does not require compliance with NFS 1852.204.72.

a) Will the Government make available configuration control procedures for NSBF personnel and outside users?

There is no requirement for an IT Security Plan to be submitted prior to contract award.  The offeror’s proposed management approach and generic solutions to IT Security will be evaluated.  The IT Security Plan is required after contract award.  

IT Security requirements have changed this year, and the procedures to be followed during the new contract are found in NFS 1852.204.72, NPG 2810.1, etc.  The current contract does not require compliance with NFS 1852.204.72.

b) Will the Government provide information on current arrangements for IT network and Internet access, including a detailed diagram of the interconnection of all hardware at NSBF Palestine and Fort Sumner?

Please see the response to question 2.a above.  Internet access at the NSBF and Fort Sumner is provided via the Open IOnet, a NASA provided internet connection managed by Marshall Space Flight Center (MSFC).

c) Will the Government provide all nodes and outside portals to commercial T-1 lines and dial-ups, network configuration, delineation of servers and clients, listing of software resident on clients and servers, current firewalls and filters, backup software and hardware, including storage devices and uninterruptible power supplies? 

Please see the response to question 2.a above.  Internet access at the NSBF and Fort Sumner is provided via the Open IOnet, a NASA provided internet connection managed by Marshall Space Flight Center (MSFC).  

d) How are science users from outside of NASA allowed to connect to local networks and any wireless network connections?

Please see the response to question 2.a above.

e) What current procedures affecting the import of hardware to the sites are in place? 

Please see the response to question 2.a above.

f) What satellite links are provided at Alice Springs, Antarctica, Fairbanks, and Sweden?

Please see the response to question 2.a above.

3. Please define the current set of software in use at NSBF and the licenses in effect for each, including operating systems, applications, network software, web page software and content, and diagnostics. 

A list of all Government furnished software will be added to the RFP Technical Library.

a) Can we conclude that all software licenses have been purchased with NASA funding are licensed to NASA and not to PSL, and therefore would transfer to the successor contractor?  If this is not the case, will NASA agree that the cost of replacing these licenses will be allowed beyond an offeror’s proposed cost?

Please refer to the response to Question 3 above.  Software licenses that were purchased with NASA funding will transfer to the successor contractor.  

b) What proprietary software is currently in use by the incumbent that an offeror would be expected to replace?

Please refer to the response to Question 3 above.

c) Will software in use by the NSBF contractor WFF engineering support staff will be provided by NASA?

Yes, the software in use by the NSBF contractor WFF engineering support staff is, and will be provided by NASA.

d) Is the IT Security Plan to include engineering support functions at WFF or do these functions come under a WFF IT Security umbrella?

These functions come under the NASA/WFF IT Security umbrella.  The contractor’s IT Security Plan is not required to include these functions.

e) Please list all software, particularly engineering design and modeling software, currently in use for support of WFF Balloon engineering requirements.

Please refer to the response to Question 3 above.

f) Are electronic mail accounts for NSBF WFF contractor personnel provided by NASA at no cost to the contractor?

Yes, the electronic mail accounts for NSBF WFF contractor personnel are provided by NASA at no cost to the contractor.

4. We are concerned about our ability to estimate the replenishment costs for balloons, parachutes, and ancillary flight hardware, based on the information provided in the Statement of Work.  We also understand that a substantial number of balloons are held in inventory at NSBF, Fort Sumner and possibly other locations.

a) Please specify the number of serviceable, flight-ready balloons of each type held in inventory and their application to conventional, LDB,  and ULDB missions.

The numbers of balloons in inventory, their conditions, their sizes and their storage locations have been provided in the Balloon Inventory (an attachment to the RFP).  The offeror will determine their applicability to types of missions.

b) We understand that the ability to reutilize balloons and parachutes, etc., that have been used for a mission depends on the damage sustained during landing and subsequent recovery.  However, for bidding purposes, bidders must have a common basis for the reutilization of this equipment in order to estimate replenishment costs, and NASA must also use this data as a basis for evaluating bids.  How many times, on average, can balloons, parachutes, rigging, etc. be re-utilized, for each location anticipated in the Flight Operations Mission Model?

The offeror will propose a re-utilization approach based on their understanding of the requirements, and “how” they intend to repair, refurbish, and/or re-use flight equipment.
c) How many new balloons/parachutes of each type will NASA require the NSBF contractor to procure over the anticipated 10-year period of the Flight Operations Mission Model?

The offeror will determine and propose how many new balloons and parachutes are necessary to support the required number of missions. 

d) We need to understand the flight hardware procurement cycle in order to appropriate flight train costs to the correct fiscal year.  What is the average lead-time between ordering and delivery, for each type of balloon or parachute?

The offeror will determine this.

5. We require specific information for cost estimation purposes regarding the aircraft support required by the Statement of Work, paragraph  4.B.6.m.:

a) What are the anticipated flight hours required to support the requirements of the referenced paragraph for each contemplated mission in the Flight Operations Mission Model?

The number of flight hours are a function of the offeror’s approach to meeting the requirements.  The Government will evaluate the proposed number of flight hours relative to the proposed approach to mission operations.

b) What are the anticipated aircraft requirements, in terms of speed, duration and passenger-carrying capacity for each contemplated mission in the Flight Operations Mission Model?

The SOW states the requirements for the aircraft as functions that the aircraft shall support.  The SOW does not state what aircraft capabilities are required to meet those functions.  The offeror will determine and propose what aircraft capabilities are needed to meet the requirements.

6. We require specific information regarding NASA’s requirement for temporary accommodations for launch crews at launch sites:

a) We understand that launch crews supporting missions in Sweden stay in hostel-like accommodations.  What is the per-day cost of these accommodations, or will sufficient information be provided in the Technical Library to allow bidders to contact the provider of the hostel?

Accommodation information in Sweden is available on the Internet.  There is no NASA requirement for contractor personnel to stay in any specific accommodations.

b) Does NASA reimburse the National Science Foundation for launch crew lodging and food expenses at Antarctica, or are these expenses a part of the contractor’s ODC?

Historically, the NSF has provided lodging and meals for NSBF’s launch crew at no cost to NASA or to the contractor.

c) Are the daily rates for lodging and food expenses in Antarctica to be found in the Technical Library, or will NASA otherwise provide this information?  We are not aware of other sources of accommodation in Antarctica that would allow an innovative Performance Based solution that would reduce these costs.

Historically, the NSF has provided lodging and meals for NSBF’s launch crew at no cost to NASA or to the contractor.

7. With regard to the NSBF:

a) What is the acreage of unimproved land that must be periodically mowed or otherwise harvested?

This information can be determined from publicly available sources.

b) What is the acreage of improved land that must mowed, landscaped, or treated with herbicides and pesticides on a routine basis to maintain a professional appearance around buildings and parking lots, etc?

This information can be determined from publicly available sources.

8. How will the Government evaluate material costs for the 10-year period contemplated?  Our initial contacts with suppliers demonstrate that they are unwilling to speculate on the costs of their products and services and provide quotes beyond the first contract year.  Thus, the costs for balloons and flight hardware, helium, cryogens, flight crew accommodations, aircraft support, air travel, air and sea shipments, etc., etc. escalated over the 10-year period are pure guess work.

Given the lack of substantiated ODC data, what basis will the Government use to evaluate these costs?  For example, if we propose to provide aircraft support services for the 10-year period with comparable aircraft to other bidders for 10% less than their costs, how will the Government assess the validity of our claim?

The Government will evaluate material costs in accordance with Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) subpart 15.4 and NASA FAR Supplement (NFS) 1815.4-Contract Pricing.  Specifically, the requirements of NFS 1815.404 Proposal Analysis will be followed.  The Government may assess the validity of offeror’s cost claims by requesting field pricing assistance per FAR 15.404-2 and NFS 1815.404-2.

GENERAL COMMENT.

We recognize that the Government must operate under the NASA mandate to procure these services through Performance Based Contracting.  However, the majority of the questions above relate to costs that are driven by the marketplace that the contractor has no influence over.  Thus the costs of helium, balloons, flight hardware, air and sea shipment, airfares, lodging expenses cannot, and will not be influenced by an innovative, performance-based approach on the part of the NSBF contractor.  The only support costs that the contractor can influence directly are those relating to the NSBF personnel and how they are utilized to support the mission.    

The Government does not agree that “the only support costs that the contractor can influence directly are those relating to the NSBF personnel and how they are utilized to support the mission”.  In accordance with the guidance on performance-based contracting, the Government has structured it’s requirements in terms of “what” the required output is and has not specified “how” the work is to be accomplished (see http://www.hq.nasa.gov/office/procurement/regs/afguidee.html#22).  The contractor can indeed influence directly the contract costs of helium, balloons, flight hardware, air and sea shipment, airfares, and lodging expenses by choosing a specific approach which drives the quantity of those items.  
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